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NOTICE OF ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING 

Notice is hereby given that the Annual General Meeting of the Members of Frontline 
Financial Services Limited (herein after referred to as “the Company”) will be held 
on Thursday September 15, 2022, at 04:00 P.M. at Registered Office of the Company, 
situated at Office No. 803, Eighth Floor Wallstreet II, Ellisbridge, Ahmedabad – 
380006, Gujarat, India to transact the following business: 

 

ORDINARY BUSINESS: 

Item No. 1 – Adoption of Audited Financial Statements 

To receive, consider and adopt the Audited Financial Statements of the Company for 
the Financial Year ended March 31, 2022 together with the Reports of the Board of 
Directors and the Auditors thereon. 

Item No. 2 – Appointment of Director  

To appoint a director in place of Mr. Pradeep Shah (DIN: 05349427), who retires by 
rotation and being eligible, offers himself for re-appointment. 

 

SPECIAL BUSINESS: 

Item No. 3 - Regularization of Additional Director, Mr. Raghvendradhari 
Nandkishor Sharma (DIN: 09209360) as Independent Director of the company. 
 

To consider and, if thought fit, to pass with or without modifications, the following 
resolution as Special Resolution: 
   

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Sections 149, 152 and any other 
applicable provision of the Companies Act, 2013 and the rules made thereunder 
(including any statutory modification(s) or re-enactment thereof for the time being in 
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force) Mr. Raghvendradhari Nandkishor Sharma (DIN: 09209360), who was 
appointed as Additional Director on 15/12/2021 and holds office upto this Annual 
General Meeting, be and is hereby appointed as Independent Director of the 
Company. 

Place: Ahmedabad 
Date: 10-08-2022 
 
 
Registered Office: 
Office No. 803, Eighth Floor Wallstreet II,  
Ellisbridge, Ahmedabad- 380006, Gujarat  
Mail: compliance@frontlinefsl.com 
Website: www.frontlinefsl.com 

By order of the Board of Directors 
 
 
 
 

Sandeep Mathur  
Managing Director 

DIN: 08173027 
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Additional Information on Directors recommended for appointment/re-appointment as 
required under Regulation 36(3) of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) 
Regulations, 2015 

 

Name Mr. Raghvendradhari 
Nandkishor Sharma 

Mr. Pradeep Babulal Shah 

Age 45 47 

Date of First 
Appointment 15/12/2021 10/04/2017 

Expertise Mr. Sharma has diverse 
expertise in the field of 
Government liasoning. 

Mr. Shah is predominantly 
engaged in operations & 

procurement in the 
Company 

Directorship/Partnership 
held in other Companies Aaryavart Infrabuild LLP – 

Designated Partner 

1. Anmol Tradeline 
Private Limited 

2. Ceremony Infraspace 
Private Limited 

No. of Equity Shares 
held in the Company 

Nil 800 

Director Identification 
No. 

09209360 05349427 
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Explanatory Statement as required by Section 102 of the Companies Act, 2013. 

In conformity with the provisions of Section 102 of the Companies Act, 2013, the following 
Explanatory Statement sets out all material facts in respect of Item of Special Business 
mentioned at Sr. No.3 of the Notice. 

In respect of Item No. 3 

Regularization of Additional Director, Mr. Raghvendradhari Nandkishor Sharma 
(DIN: 09209360) as Independent Director of the company 

Mr. Raghvendradhari Sharma was appointed as an Additional Independent Director 
with effect from December 15, 2021, in accordance with the provisions of Section 161 
of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the Articles of Association. Pursuant to Section 
161 of the Companies Act, 2013, the above director holds office up to the date of 
ensuring Annual General Meeting of the Company. The Board is of the view that the 
appointment of Mr. Raghvendradhari Sharma on the Company’s Board is desirable 
and would be beneficial to the Company and hence it recommends the said 
resolution No 3 for approval by the members of the Company. None of the Directors 
/ Key Managerial Personnel of the Company / their relatives except Mr. 
Raghvendradhari Sharma himself, in any way concerned or interested, in the said 
resolution. The board recommends the said resolution to be passed as an ordinary 
resolution. 
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Notes: 
 

1. A member entitled to attend and vote at the meeting is entitled to appoint a 
proxy to attend and vote instead of himself and proxy need not be a member. 
Proxy in order to be valid must be received by the company not less than 
forty‐eight hours before the time of holding the Meeting. 
 

2. Members/Proxies should bring the Attendance Slip, duly filled in, for 
attending the meeting. 
 

3. Members desiring any information regarding the accounts are requested to 
write to the Company at least Seven Days before the meeting so as to enable 
the management to keep the same ready. 
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Attendance Slip 

 

Venue of the meeting: Office No. 803, Eighth Floor Wallstreet II, Ellisbridge,  
Ahmedabad- 380006, Gujarat 

Day, Date & Time:   
 

PLEASE FILL ATTENDANCE SLIP AND HAND IT OVER AT THE ENTRANCE OF 
THE MEETING VENUE 
Name of Member: 
 

 

Address: 
 

 

E-mail ID:  
 

 

DP ID* 
 

 

Client ID* 
 

 

Folio No. 
 

 

No. of Shares held 
 

 

*Applicable to investors holding shares in demat form. 

I certify that I am the registered shareholder(s)/proxy for the registered shareholder 
of the Company. 

I hereby record my presence at the Annual General meeting of the Company on 
_______ at ______ 

 

________________________ 

Signature of Member/Proxy 
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Proxy Form 

Form MGT-11 

Pursuant to Section 105(6) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule 19(3) ofthe Companies (Management and 
Administration) Rules, 2014 

 

Venue of the meeting: Office No. 803, Eighth Floor Wallstreet II, Ellisbridge, Ahmedabad- 
380006, Gujarat 

Day, Date & Time:   
 

PLEASE FILL ATTENDANCE SLIP AND HAND IT OVER AT THE ENTRANCE OF THE MEETING 
VENUE 
Name of Member:  
Address:  
E-mail ID:   
DP ID*  
Client ID*  
*Applicable to investors holding shares in demat form. 

I/We _____________________________________________ of _____________________________ being the 
member/members Frontline Financial Services Limited hereby appoint the following as my/our Proxy 
to attend and vote on a poll (for me/us and on my/our behalf at the Annual General Meeting of the 
Company, to be held on ______________and at any adjournment thereof) in respect of such 
resolutions as are indicated below: 

Name: _____________________ Registered Address: _____________________ 

Email ID: _____________________ Signature _____________________ 

Or failing him/her 

 

   

Name: _____________________ Registered Address: _____________________ 

Email ID: _____________________ Signature _____________________ 
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** I/We direct my/our Proxy to vote on the Resolutions in the manner as indicated below: 

Sr. No. Resolution No. of 
Shares 

For Against 

1.     
2.     
3.     
4.     
5.     

If a Member leaves the “For” or “Against” column blank against any or all the Resolutions, the proxy 
will be entitled to vote in the manner he/she thinks appropriate. If a Member wishes to abstain from 
voting on a particular resolution, he/she should write “Abstain” across the boxes against the 
Resolution.  

Signature (s) of Member(s)  

1._______________________  

2. _______________________ 

3. _______________________  

Signed this____________day of _____________ 2022.  

 

 

Notes:  

1. The Proxy to be effective should be deposited at the Registered office of the company not less than 
48 HOURS before the commencement of the Meeting. A Proxy need not be a Member of the 
Company.  

2. In the case of joint holders, the vote of the senior who tenders a vote, whether in person or by 
proxy, shall be accepted to the exclusion of the vote of the other joint holders. Seniority shall be 
determined by the order in which the names stand in the Register of Members.  

 

 

Affix 
Revenue 

Stamp not 
less than 

Re. 1 
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Instructions for E‐voting 

I. The instructions for shareholders voting electronically are as under: 
II. The shareholders should log on to the e‐voting website www.evotingindia.com. 

III. Click on Shareholders. Now Enter your User ID 
I. For CDSL: 16 digits beneficiary ID, 

II. For NSDL: 8 Character DP ID followed by 8 Digits Client ID, 
III. Members holding shares in Physical Form should enter Folio Number registered 

with the Company. 
IV. Next enter the Image Verification as displayed and Click on Login. 
V. If you are holding shares in demat form and had logged on to www.evotingindia.com 

and voted on an earlier voting of any company, then your existing password is to be 
used. 

VI. If you are a first time user follow the steps given below: 

 For Members holding shares in Demat Form and Physical Form 

PAN Enteryour10-digitalpha‐numeric*PAN issued by Income Tax Department (Applicable 
for both demat shareholders as well as physical shareholders) 

 Members who have not updated their PAN with the Company/Depository 
Participant are requested to use the first two letters of their name and the 8 
digits of the sequence number in the PAN Field.  

 In case the sequence number is less than 8 digits enter the applicable 
number of 0’s before the number after the first two characters of the name 
in CAPITAL letters. Eg. If your name is 
RameshKumarwithsequencenumber1thenenterRA00000001in 

the PAN field. 

Dividend 
Bank 
Details 

Enter the Dividend Bank Details as recorded in your demat account or in the 
company records for the said demat account or folio. 

 Please enter the DOB or Dividend Bank Details in order to login. If the 
details are not recorded with the depository or company please enter the 
member id / folio number in the Dividend Bank details field as mentioned 
in instruction (iv). 

VII. After entering these details appropriately, click on “SUBMIT” tab. 
VIII. Members holding shares in physical form will then directly reach the Company selection 

screen. However, members holding shares in demat form will now reach ‘Password 
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Creation’ menu wherein they are required to mandatorily enter their login password in 
the new password field. Kindly note that this password is to be also used by the demat 
holders for voting for resolutions of any other company on which they are eligible to 
vote, provided that company opts for e‐voting through CDSL platform. It is strongly 
recommended not to share your password with any other person and take utmost care to 
keep your password confidential. 

IX. For Members holding shares in physical form, the details can be used only for e‐ voting 
on the resolutions contained in this Notice. 

X. Click on the EVSN for the relevant FRONTLINE FINANCIAL SERVICES LIMITED on 
which you choose to vote. 

XI. On the voting page, you will see “RESOLUTION DESCRIPTION” and against the same 
the option “YES/NO” for voting. Select the option YES or NO as desired. The option YES 
implies that you assent to the Resolution and option NO implies that you dissent to the 
Resolution. 

XII. Click on the “RESOLUTIONS FILE LINK” if you wish to view the entire Resolution 
details. 

XIII. After selecting the resolution you have decided to vote on, click on “SUBMIT”. A 
confirmation box will be displayed. If you wish to confirm your vote, click on “OK”, else 
to change your vote, click on “CANCEL” and accordingly modify your vote. 

XIV. Once you “CONFIRM” your vote on the resolution, you will not be allowed to modify 
your vote. 

XV. You can also take out print of the voting done by you by clicking on “Click here to print” 
option on the Voting page. 

XVI. If Demat account holder has forgotten the same password then enter the User ID and the 
image verification code and click on Forgot Password & enter the details as prompted by 
the system. 

XVII. Shareholders can also use Mobile app ‐ “m‐Voting” for e voting. m‐Voting app is 
available on IOS, Android & Windows based Mobile. Shareholders may log in to m‐ 
Voting using their e voting credentials to vote for the company resolution(s). 

XVIII. Note for Non – Individual Shareholders and Custodians 
 
• Non‐Individual shareholders (i.e. other than Individuals, HUF, NRI etc.) and 
Custodian are required to log on to www.evotingindia.com and register themselves as 
Corporates. 
• A scanned copy of the Registration Form bearing the stamp and sign of the entity 
should be emailed to helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com. 
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT 

 

To, 
The Members of 
M/s. Frontline Financial Services Limited 
 

Your directors have pleasure in presenting the Board’s Report of your Company 
together with the Audited Statement of Accounts and the Auditors’ Report of your 
company for the financial year ended, March 31,2022. 
 

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS 

(Amount in Rupees) 
Particulars Standalone 

 Year ended 
March 31, 

2022 

(INR) 

Year ended 
March 31, 

2021 

(INR) 

Total Revenue 22,63,124 68,489 

Total Expenses (21,59,251) (32,861) 

Total Profit/(loss) before exceptional and extraordinary 
items 

1,03,873 35,628 

Exceptional Items 0 0 

Net Profit/(loss) Before Tax 1,03,873 35,628 

Tax Expense (30,980) (24,940) 
Net Profit/(loss) After Tax 88,383 24,940 

 

FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE AND STATE OF AFFAIRS 

During the year under review, the Company has made a profit of Rs. 88,383 
(Rupees Eighty Eight Thousand Three Hundred And Eighty Three) as 
compared to a profit of Rs. 24,940 (Rupees Twenty Four Thousand Nine 
Forty) in financial year 2020-21. Operations of the Company had been 
severely impacted by the outbreak of the novel corona virus (COVID-19) 
which has been declared as a pandemic by the World Health Organization 
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(WHO), however the Company is now at recovery mode and in under 
process to elevate earnings & turnover. 

 

DIVIDEND 

Keeping in view the future prospects and plans of the Company, the Board 
has decided to conserve the fund of the Company and thereby do not 
recommend any divided for current financial year. 

 

TRANSFER TO RESERVES 

No amount has been transferred to General Reserve during the year under 
review. 

 

SHARE CAPITAL 
There were no changes to the authorized share capital during the year. The 
issued capital as of March 31, 2022 was Rs. 5,90,11,000. 

 
MATERIAL CHANGES AND COMMITMENTS 

No material changes and commitments affecting the financial position of the 
Company occurred between the ends of the financial year to which this 
financial statement relate on the date of this report. 

 
INFORMATION ON SUBSIDIARY/ JOINT VENTURES/ ASSOCIATE 
COMPANY 

Company does not have any Subsidiary, Joint venture or Associate 
Company. 

 

TRANSFER OF UNCLAIMED DIVIDEND TO INVESTOR EDUCTION AND 
PROTECTION FUND 

The provisions of Section125 (2) of the Companies Act, 2013 do not apply as 
there was no dividend declared and paid last year. 
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FAMILIARIZATION PROGRAMME FOR THE INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS 

The Company follows a well-structured induction programme for 
orientation and training of Directors at the time of their joining to provide 
them with an opportunity to familiarise themselves with the Company, its 
management, its operations and the industry in which the Company 
operates. At the time of appointing a Director, a formal letter of appointment 
is given to him/her, which inter-alia explains the role, function, duties and 
responsibilities expected of him/her as a Director of the Company. The 
Director is also explained in detail the Compliance required from him/her 
under the Companies Act, 2013, the Listing Regulations and other relevant 
regulations and affirmation taken with respect to the same. 

 

MEETINGS OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

During the year under review 8 board meetings were held. The intervening 
gap between meetings was within the period as prescribed under the 
Companies Act, 2013 (‘Act’) and the Listing Regulations. 

 

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT 

Pursuant to Section 134(5) of the Companies Act, 2013 the Board of Directors of the 
Company confirms that-  

(a) In the preparation of the annual accounts, the applicable accounting 
standards had been followed along with proper explanation relating to 
material departures; 

(b) The directors had selected such accounting policies and applied them 
consistently and made judgments and estimates that are reasonable and 
prudent so as to give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the 
company at the end of the financial year and of the profit and loss of the 
company for that period; 

(c) The directors had taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of 
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adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of this Act for 
safeguarding the assets of the company and for preventing and detecting 
fraud and other irregularities; 

(d) The directors had prepared the annual accounts on a going concern basis; and 

(e) The directors, in the case of a listed company, had laid down internal 
financial controls to be followed by the company and that such internal 
financial controls are adequate and were operating effectively. 

(f) The directors had devised proper systems to ensure compliance with the 
provisions of all applicable laws and that such systems were adequate and 
operating effectively. 

EXTRACT OF ANNUAL RETURN 

The Extract of Annual Return as required under section 92(3) of the 
Companies Act, 2013 and rule12(1) of the Companies (Management and 
Administration) Rules, 2014, in Form MGT‐9 is annexed herewith for your 
kind perusal and information. Further, the same has also been hosted on the 
website of the Company. URL: https://frontlinefsl.com/ 

 

AUDITORS AND REPORT THEREON 

M/s. J S Shah & Co., Chartered Accountants, are the statutory auditor of the 
company for the year under review. There are no qualifications or adverse 
remarks in the Auditors’ Report which require any clarification/ explanation. 
The Notes on financial statements are self‐explanatory, and needs no further 
explanation. Further the Auditors’ Report for the financial year ended, 
March 31, 2022 is annexed herewith for your kind perusal and information. 

 

LOANS, GUARANTEES AND INVESTMENTS 

There were loans and investments made by the Company, however there 
was no guarantee was given under Section 186 of the Companies Act, 2013 
during the year under review. 
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RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 

All related party transactions that were entered into during the financial year 
were on an arm’s length basis and were in the ordinary course of business. 
There are no materially significant related party transactions made by the 
Company with Promoters, Directors, Key Managerial Personnel or other 
designated persons which may have a potential conflict with the interest of 
the same. 

 

CONSERVATION OF ENERGY, TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION AND FOREIGN 
EXCHANGE OUTGO: 

(A) Conservation of energy and Technology absorption 

The particulars as required under the provisions of Section 134(3) (m) of the 
Companies Act, 2013 in respect of conservation of energy and technology 
absorption have not been furnished considering the nature of activities 
undertaken by the company during the year under review. 

 

(B) Foreign exchange earnings and Outgo 

There were no foreign exchange earnings and outgo during the year under 
review. 

 

RISK MANAGEMENT 

The Company does not have any Risk Management Policy as the element of 
risk threatening the Company’s existence is very minimal. 
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DIRECTORS and KMP 

Following is the composition of Board of Directors of the Company as on 
March 31, 2022: 

 
Sr. 
No 

Name of Director/KMP Designation DIN/ PAN 

1 Mr. Sandeep Chhaganlal 
Mathur 

Managing Director 08173027 

2 Mr. Viki Jayeshkumar 
Shah 

Non- Executive, Director 07823247 

3 Ms. Sejal Kaushikkumar 
Shah 

Independent Woman 
Director 

07489588 

4 Mr. Pradeep Babulal 
Shah 

Executive Director 05349427 

5 Mr. Raghvendradhari 
Nandkishor Sharma 

Independent Director 09209360 

6 Mr. Sandeep Chhaganlal 
Mathur 

Chief Finance Officer AEKPM1066J 

7 Ms. Kunjan Mistry Company Secretary CONPM0146Q 

 

During the financial year under review Mr. Raghvendradhari Sharma has 
been appointed as Additional Independent Director to the Company. His 
office is up for regularization in this Annual General Meeting. 

 

The Company has appointed Ms. Kunjan Mistry as Company Secretary 
during the year under review. 

 

DEPOSITS 

The company has not accepted any deposits during the year. 

 

CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY 

The company does not meet the criteria of Section 135 of Companies Act, 
2013 read with the Companies (Corporate Social Responsibility Policy) 
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Rules, 2014 so there is no requirement to constitute Corporate Social 
Responsibility Committee. 

 

RATIO OF REMUNERATION TO EACH DIRECTOR 

The information required pursuant to Section 197 read with Rule 5 of The 
Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) 
Rules, 2014 and Companies (Particulars of Employees) Rules, 1975, in respect 
of employees of the Company and Directors is furnished in the auditor 
report of the company as attached herewith. 

 

PERFORMANCE EVALUATION OF THE BOARD, COMMITTEES AND 
INDIVIDUAL DIRECTORS  

Pursuant to the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, the Board has carried 
out an annual performance evaluation of its own performance, the directors 
individually as well as the evaluation of the working of its Audit, 
Nomination & Remuneration and Compliance Committees. 

A structured questionnaire was prepared after taking into consideration 
inputs received from the Directors, covering various aspects of the Board’s 
functioning such as adequacy of the composition of the Board and its 
Committees, Board culture, execution and performance of specific duties, 
obligations and governance. 

 

INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS AND DECLARATION 

The Board of Directors of the Company hereby confirms that all the 
Independent Directors duly appointed by the Company have given the 
declaration and they meet the criteria of independence as provided under 
section 149(6) of the Companies Act, 2013. 

 

NOMINATION AND REMUNERATION COMMITTEE 

As per the section 178(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 the Company’s 
Nomination and Remuneration Committee comprises of three Directors. The 
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table sets out the composition of the Committee: 

 

Sr. 
No 

Name of Director Position held in 
Committee 

Director information 

1 Sejal Shah Chairman Non-Executive 
Independent Director 

2 Viki Shah Member Non-Executive 
Professional Director 

3 Reghvendradhari 
Sharma 

Member Independent Director 

 

Terms of Reference 

The Terms of Reference of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee are 
as under: 

1. To identify persons who are qualified to become Directors and who 
may be appointed in senior management in accordance with the 
criteria laid down, recommend to the Board their appointment and 
removal and shall carry out evaluation of every Director’s 
performance. 

2. To formulate the criteria for determining qualifications, positive 
attributes and independence of a Director and recommend to the 
Board a policy, relating to the remuneration for the Directors, Key 
Managerial Personnel and other employees. 

3. The Nomination and Remuneration Committee shall, while 
formulating the policy ensure that: 
 the level and composition of remuneration is reasonable and 

sufficient to attract, retain and motivate Directors of the quality 
required to run the Company successfully; 

 relationship of remuneration to performance is clear and meets 
appropriate performance benchmarks; and 

 remuneration to Directors, Key Managerial Personnel and senior 
management involves a balance between fixed and incentive pay 
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reflecting short and long‐term performance objectives appropriate 
to the working of the company and its goals. 

4. Regularly review the Human Resource function of the Company. 
5. Discharge such other function(s) or exercise such power(s) as may be 

delegated to the Committee by the Board from time to time. 
6. Make reports to the Board as appropriate. 
7. Review and reassess the adequacy of this charter periodically and 

recommend any proposed changes to the Board for approval from 
time to time. 

8. Any other work and policy, related and incidental to the objectives of 
the committee as per provisions of the Act and rules made there under. 

 

REMUNERATION POLICY 

 

Remuneration to Executive Directors: 

The remuneration paid to Executive Directors is recommended by the 
Nomination and Remuneration Committee and approved by Board in Board 
meeting, subject to the subsequent approval of the shareholders at the 
General Meeting and such other authorities, as may be required. The 
remuneration is decided after considering various factors such as 
qualification, experience, performance, responsibilities shouldered, industry 
standards as well as financial position of the Company. 

 

Remuneration to Non Executive Directors: 

The Non Executive Directors are paid remuneration by way of Sitting Fees 
and Commission. The Non Executive Directors are paid sitting fees for each 
meeting of the Board and Committee of Directors attended by them. 

 

AUDIT COMMITTEE 

According to Section 177 of the Companies Act, 2013 the company’s Audit 
Committee comprised of three directors. The board has accepted the 
recommendations of the Audit Committee. The table sets out the 
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composition of the Committee: 

 

Sr. 
No 

Name of Director Position held in 
Committee 

Director information 

1 Viki Shah Chairman Non-Executive 
Professional Director 

2 Sejal Shah Member Non-Executive 
Independent Director 

3 Raghvendradhari 
Sharma 

Member Independent Director 

 

SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT 

Clarification to the qualifications or adverse remarks in the Secretarial Audit 
Report as mentioned below. 

 

1. The Company is in process to identify eligible candidate for the post of 
Internal Auditor & shall appoint one at the earliest. 

2. The Company is still in process of revocation of suspension of trading 
and soon the trading will be started. 

3. The Company takes due note of the same & shall ensure requisite 
compliances be carried out. 

4. The Company takes due note of the same & shall ensure requisite 
compliances be carried out. 

5. The Company takes due note of the same & shall ensure requisite 
compliances be carried out. 

 

COST AUDIT 

Cost Audit is not applicable to the Company. 
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VIGIL MECHANISM 

As per Section 177(9) and (10) of the Companies Act, 2013, and as per the 
Clause 49 of the Listing Agreement, the company has established Vigil 
Mechanism for directors and employees to report genuine concerns and 
made provisions for direct access to the chairperson of the Audit Committee. 
Company has formulated the present policy for establishing the vigil 
mechanism/ Whistle Blower Policy to safeguard the interest of its 
stakeholders, Directors and employees, to freely communicate and address 
to the Company their genuine concerns in relation to any illegal or unethical 
practice being carried out in the Company. The details of the Vigil 
Committee are annexed herewith for your kind perusal and information. 

 

DISCLOSURE UNDER THE SEXUAL HARASSMENT OF WOMEN AT 
WORKPLACE (PREVENTION, PROHIBITION AND REDRESSEL) ACT, 2013: 

 

The Company has in place an Anti Sexual Harassment Policy in line with the 
requirements of The Sexual Harassment of Women at the Workplace 
(Prevention, Prohibition & Redressal) Act, 2013. Internal Complaints 
Committee (ICC) has been set up to redress complaints received regarding 
sexual harassment. All employees (Permanent, contractual, temporary, 
trainees) are covered under this policy. 

 

DETAILS OF ADEQUACY OF INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROLS 

The company has established adequate internal financial control systems to 
ensure reliable financial reporting and compliance with laws and 
regulations. 
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Date: 10-08-2022 

For and on behalf of Board, 
Frontline Financial Services Limited 

 
 
 
 

Sd/- 
Viki Shah 

Director 
DIN: 07823247 

 
 
 

Sd/- 
Sandeep Mathur  

Managing Director 
DIN: 08173027 

Place: Ahmedabad 
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FORM NO. AOC-2 

[Pursuant to clause (h) of sub-section (3) of Section 134 of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule 8(2) of 
the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014] 

Form for Disclosure of particulars of contracts/arrangements entered into by the company 
with related parties referred to in sub section (1) of section 188 of the Companies Act, 2013 

including certain arms length transaction under third proviso thereto. 
1. Details of contracts or arrangements or transactions not at Arm’s length 

basis. 
There were no contracts or arrangements or transactions entered in to during the 
year ended March 31, 2020, which were not arm's length basis 
 

2. Details of contracts or arrangements or transactions at Arm’s length basis. 
 

SL. 
No. 

Particulars Details 

a)  Name (s) of the related party & nature of relationship NIL 
b)  Nature of contracts/arrangements/transaction NIL 
c)  Duration of the contracts/arrangements/transaction NIL 
d)  Salient terms of the contracts or arrangements or transaction 

including the value, if any 
NIL 

e)  Date of approval by the Board NIL 
f)  Amount paid as advances, if any NIL 

 
Registered Office: 
Office No. 803, Eighth Floor Wallstreet II,  
Ellisbridge, Ahmedabad- 380006, Gujarat  
Mail: compliance@frontlinefsl.com 
Website: www.frontlinefsl.com 

For and on behalf of Board, 
Frontline Financial Services Limited 
 
 
 
 
Sd/- 
Viki Shah 
Director 
DIN: 07823247 

 
 
 
Sd/- 
Sandeep Mathur  
Managing Director 
DIN: 08173027 

Place: Ahmedabad 
Date: 10-08-2022 
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EXTRACT OF ANNUAL RETURN 

 

FORM NO. MGT-9 
[Pursuant to Section 92(3) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 12(1) of the 
Companies (Management and Administration) Rules, 2014] 
 

I. REGISTRATION AND OTHER DETAILS: 
 
i. CIN L65910GJ1991PLC016289 

ii. Registration Date 19/09/1991 

iii. Name of the Company Frontline Financial Services Limited 

iv. Category/Sub-Category of 
the Company 

Company limited by shares 
 
Indian Non- Govenrment  Company 

v. Address of the Registered 
office and contact details 

Office No 803, Eighth Floor, Wallstreet II, 
Ellisbridge, Ahmedabad, Gujarat- 380006  
 
Phone:079- 26461390 
Mail: compliance@frontlinefsl.com 

vi. Whether listed Company Yes 

vii. Name, Address and Contact 
details of Registrar and 
Transfer Agent. 

Link In Time India Pvt. Ltd. 
 
Unit no. 303, 3rd Floor, 
Shoppers Plaza V, 
Opp. Municipal Market, 
B/h. Shoppers Plaza ii,  
Off C.G. Road,  
Ahmedabad-380 009 
 
Phone: 079- 26465179 
Mail: ahmedabad@linkintime.co.in 
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II. PRINCIPAL BUSINESS ACTIVITIES OF THE COMPANY 
 
All the Business Activities Contributing 10% Or More of the total turnover of the 
Company shall be stated: 

Sr. 
No. 

Name and Description of main 
products/services 

NIC Code of the 
Product/ service 

%of total turnover of 
the company 

1. Trading of Construction 
Material 

996/9961/9961161 100.00 

 
III. PARTICULARS OF HOLDING, SUBSIDIARY AND ASSOCIATE 

COMPANIES 
 

Sr. 
No. 

Name And Address of 
the Company 

CIN/GLN Holding/ 
Subsidiary 
/Associate 

%of 
shares 
held 

Applicable 
Section 

1. N.A. N.A. N.A. N.A. N.A. 
 

IV. SHARE HOLDING PATTERN (EQUITY SHARE CAPITAL BREAKUP AS 
PERCENTAGE OF TOTAL EQUITY) 

 
i. CATEGORY-WISE SHAREHOLDING 

 
Category of 
Shareholders 

No. of Shares held at the 
beginning of the year 

No. of Shares held at the end of 
the year 

% Change 
during 
theyear 

 De
mat 

Physical Total % of 
Total 
Share
s 

Demat Physical Total % of 
Total 
Share
s 

 

A. Promoter          
1) Indian          
a) Individual/ 
HUF 

0 1812600 1812600 30.72 0 1812600 1812600 30.72 0.00 

b) Central Govt 0 0 0 00.00 0 0 0 00.00 0.00 
c) State Govt(s) 0 0 0 00.00 0 0 0 00.00 0.00 
d) Bodies Corp 0 0 0 00.00 0 0 0 00.00 0.00 
e) Banks / FI 0 0 0 00.00 0 0 0 00.00 0.00 
f) Any Other 0 0 0 00.00 0 0 0 00.00 0.00 
Sub-total(A)(1): 0 1812600 1812600 30.72 0 1812600 1812600 30.72 0.00 

2) Foreign         0.00 
g) NRIs- 0 0 0 00.00 0 0 0 00.00 0.00 
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Individuals 
h) Other-
Individuals 

0 0 0 00.00 0 0 0 00.00 0.00 

i) Bodies Corp. 0 0 0 00.00 0 0 0 00.00 0.00 
j) Banks / FI 0 0 0 00.00 0 0 0 00.00 0.00 
k) Any Other…. 0 0 0 00.00 0 0 0 00.00 0.00 
Sub-total(A)(2): 0 0 0 00.0 0 0 0 00.0 0.00 
B. Public 
Shareholding 

         

1. Institutions          
a) Mutual Funds 0 0 0 00.00 0 0 0 00.00 0.00 
b) Banks / FI 0 0 0 00.00 0 0 0 00.00 0.00 
c) Central Govt 0 0 0 00.00 0 0 0 00.00 0.00 
d) State Govt(s) 0 0 0 00.00 0 0 0 00.00 0.00 
e) Venture 

Capital 
Funds 

0 0 0 00.00 0 0 0 00.00 0.00 

f) Insurance 
Companies 

0 0 0 00.00 0 0 0 00.00 0.00 

g) FIIs 0 0 0 00.00 0 0 0 00.00 0.00 
h) Foreign 

Venture 
Capital 
Funds 

0 0 0 00.00 0 0 0 00.00 0.00 

i) Others 
(specify) 

0 0 0 00.00 0 0 0 00.00 0.00 

Sub-total(B)(1) 0 0 0 00.0 0 0 0 00.0 0.00 
2. Non 
Institutions 

        0.00 

a) Bodies Corp. 
(i) Indian 
(ii) Overseas 

0 0 0 00.00 0 0 0 00.00 0.00 

b) Individuals 
 

(i) Individual 
shareholders 
holding 
nominal share 
capital uptoRs. 
1 lakh 
 
(ii) Individual 
shareholders 
holding 
nominal share 
capital in excess 

 
 
 
 
0 
 
 
 
 
 
0 

 
 
 
 
548900 
 
 
 
 
 
3539600 

 
 
 
 
548900 
 
 
 
 
 
3539600 

 
 
 
 
09.31 
 
 
 
 
 
59.98 

 
 
 
 
0 
 
 
 
 
 
0 

 
 
 
 
548900 
 
 
 
 
 
3539600 

 
 
 
 
548900 
 
 
 
 
 
3539600 

 
 
 
 
09.31 
 
 
 
 
 
59.98 

 
 
 
 
0.00 
 
 
 
 
 
0.00 
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of Rs 1 lakh 
c) Others(Specif

y) 
0 0 0 00.00 0 0 0 00.00 0.00 

Sub-total(B)(2) 0 4088500 4088500 69.2 0 4088500 4088500 69.2 0.00 
Total Public 
Shareholding 
(B)=(B)(1)+(B)(2) 

0 4088500 4088500 69.28 0 4088500 4088500 69.28 0.00 

C. Shares held by 
Custodian for 
GDRs&ADRs 

0 0 0 00.00 0 0 0 00.00 0.00 

Grand Total 
(A+B+C) 

0 5901100 5901100 100.0 0 5901100 5901100 100.0 0.00 

 
 

ii.SHAREHOLDING OF PROMOTERS 
Sr
. 

N
o 

Shareholder
’s Name 

Shareholding at the 
beginning of the year 

Shareholding at the end of the 
year 

 

  No. of 
Shares 

% of 
total 
Shar
es  
 

%of 
Shares 
Pledg
ed  

No. of 
Shares 

% of 
total 
Shares 

%of 
Shares 
Pledge
d 

% 
change 
in share 
holding  

1. Tushar Shah 107400 1.82 0.00 107400 1.82 0.00 0.00 
2. Chintan 

Shah 
59700 1.01 0.00 59700 1.01 0.00 0.00 

3. Bhadresh 
Mehta 

59400 1.01 0.00 59400 1.01 0.00 0.00 

4. Deep 
Gadhecha 

259000 4.39 0.00 259000 4.39 0.00 0.00 

5. Ajitbhai 
Doshi 

272900 4.62 0.00 272900 4.62 0.00 0.00 

6. Sureshbhai 
Gadhecha 

296900 5.03 0.00 296900 5.03 0.00 0.00 

7. Bipinbhai 
Sanghvi 

276500 4.69 0.00 276500 4.69 0.00 0.00 

8. Chhayaben 
Gadhecha 

293800 4.98 0.00 293800 4.98 0.00 0.00 

9. Aalin Mehta 187000 3.17 0.00 187000 3.17 0.00 0.00 

 Total 1812600 30.72 0.00 1812600 30.72 0.00 0.00 
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iii.Change in Promoters’ Shareholding (please specify ,if there is no change) 
 
Sr. 
no 

Particulars Shareholding at the 
beginning of the year 

Cumulative Shareholding 
during the year 

  No. of shares % of total 
shares of the 
company 

No. of shares % of total 
shares of the 
company 

1 At the beginning of 
the year 

1812600 30.72 1812600 30.72 

2 Date wise 
Increase / 
Decrease during 
the year 

 
 
 

-- 

 
 
 

-- 

 
 
 

-- 

 
 
 

-- 
3 At the End of the 

year 
1812600 30.72 1812600 30.72 

 
 

V. REMUNERATIONOFDIRECTORSANDKEY-MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL 
Remuneration to Managing Director, Whole-time Directors and/or Manager: 
 

Sl. 
No. 

Particulars of Remuneration Name of MD/WTD/ 
Manager 

Total 
Amount 

1. Gross salary 
(a) Salary as per provisions 
contain edinsection17(1) of the 
Income-tax Act,1961 
(b) Value of perquisites u/s 17(2) 
Income-taxAct,1961 
(c) Profits in lieu of salary under 
section17(3) Income-taxAct,1961 

 
 

- 

 
 

- 

 
 

- 

 
 

- 

 
 

- 

2. Stock Option - - - - - 

3. Sweat Equity - - - - - 

4. Commission 
- As % of profit 
- others, specify… 

- - - - - 

5. Others, please specify - - - - - 

6. Total(A) - - - - - 

 Ceiling as per the Act - - - - - 
 
  



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Annual Report 

Financial Year 2021-22 

Remuneration to other Directors: 
Sl.No. Particulars of Remuneration NameofMD/WTD

/ 
Manager 

Total 
 

1 Independent Directors 
· Fee for attending board, 
committee meetings 
· Commission 
· Others, please specify 

 
- 

 
- 

 
- 

 
- 

 
- 

 Total (1) 0 0 0 0 0 
2 Other Non-Executive Directors 

· Fee for attending board committee 
meetings 
· Commission 
· Others, please specify 

 
- 

 
- 

 
- 

 
- 

 
- 

 Total (2) 0 0 0 0 0 
3 Total(B)= (1+2) 0 0 0 0 0 
 Total Managerial Remuneration - - - - - 
4 Overall Ceiling as per the Act - - - - - 
 
 
Remuneration to Key Managerial Personnel Other Than MD/Manager/WTD 
 
Sl. 
no. 

Particulars of Remuneration Key Managerial Personnel 

  CEO Company 
Secretary 

CFO Total 

1. Gross salary  
(a)Salary as per provisions 
containedinsection17(1) of the 
Income-tax Act,1961 

- - - - 

 (b)Value of perquisites u/s17(2) Income-tax 
Act,1961 

 
- 

 
- 

 
- 

 
- 

 (c)Profitsinlieuofsalaryundersection17(3) 
Income-tax Act,1961 

 
- 

 
- 

 
- 

 
- 

2. Stock Option - - - - 
3. Sweat Equity - - - - 
4. Commission 

- as% of profit 
-others, specify… 

- - - - 

5. Others, please specify - - - - 
6. Total - - - - 
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VI. INDEBTEDNESS 
Indebtedness of the Company including interest outstanding/accrued but not due for payment 
Particulars Secured Loans 

excluding 
deposits 

Unsecured 
Loans 

Deposits Total 
Indebtedness 

Indebtedness at the beginning 
of the financial year 
i) Principal Amount 
ii) Interest due but not paid 
iii) Interest accrued but not 

 
 
0 
0 
0 

 
 
19,50,000 
0 
0 

 
 
0 
0 
0 

 
 
19,50,000 
0 
0 
 

Total(i+ii+iii) 0 19,50,000 0 19,50,000 

Change in Indebtedness during the 
financial year 
- Addition 

 
 
0 

 
 
0 

 
 
0 

 
 
0 

- Reduction   0 -1,88,800   0 -1,88,800 
     
Net Change 0 -1,88,800 0 -1,88,800 
 
Indebtedness at the end of the 
financial year 
 
i) Principal Amount 
ii) Interest due but not paid 
iii) Interest accrued but not due 

 
 
 
 
0 
0 
0 

 
 
 
 
17,61,200 
0 
0 

 
 
 
 
0 
0 
0 
 

 
 
 
 
17,61,200 
0 
0 

Total (i+ii+iii) 0 17,61,200 0 17,61,200 
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VII. PENALTIES/PUNISHMENT/COMPOUNDING OF OFFENCES: None 

 
 
 
 

For and on behalf of Board, 
Frontline Financial Services Limited 
 
 
 
 
Sd/- 
Viki Shah 
Director 
DIN: 07823247 

 
 
 
Sd/- 
Sandeep Mathur  
Managing Director 
DIN: 08173027 

Place: Ahmedabad 
Date: 10-08-2022 
 
Registered Office: 
Office No. 803, Eighth Floor Wallstreet II,  
Ellisbridge, Ahmedabad- 380006, Gujarat  
Mail: compliance@frontlinefsl.com 
Website: www.frontlinefsl.com 
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SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT 

 
Form No. MR 3 
[Pursuant to section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule 9 of the Companies 
(Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014] 
 

To, 

The Members, 

M/s. Frontline Financial Services Limited, 

Ahmedabad 

 

We have conducted the secretarial audit of the compliance of applicable statutory provisions 
and the adherence to good corporate practices by M/s Frontline Financial Services Limited, 
(hereinafter called the company). Secretarial Audit was conducted in a manner that 
provided me a reasonable basis for evaluating the corporate conducts/statutory compliances 
and expressing my opinion thereon. 
 
Based on my verification of the company’s books, papers, minute books, forms and returns 
filed and other records maintained by the company and also the information provided by 
the Company, its officers, agents and authorized representatives during the conduct of 
secretarial audit, We hereby report that in my opinion, the company has, during the audit 
period covering the financial year ended on 31‐03‐2022, complied with the statutory 
provisions listed hereunder and also that the Company has proper Board‐processes and 
compliance‐mechanism in place to the extent, in the manner and subject to the reporting 
made hereinafter: 
 
We have examined the books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other 
records maintained by the Company for the financial year ended on 31st March, 2022 
according to the provisions of: 
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 The Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) and the rules made there under; 
 

 The Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956 (‘SCRA’) and the rules made 
there under; 

 
 The Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regulations and Bye‐laws framed there 

under. 
 

 Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the rules and regulations made 
there under to the extent of Foreign Direct Investment, Overseas Direct 
Investment and External Commercial Borrowings; NOT APPLICABLE 

 
 The following Regulations and Guidelines prescribed under the Securities 

and Exchange Board of India Act, 1992 (‘SEBI Act’):‐ 
 

 The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Substantial Acquisition of 
Shares and Takeovers) Regulations, 2011; 

 The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider 
Trading) Regulations, 2015; 

 The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and 
Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2018 (Not Applicable to the 
Company during the Audit Period); 

 The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Employee Stock Option 
Scheme and Employee Stock Purchase Scheme) Guidelines, 2014 (Not 
Applicable to the Company during the Audit Period); 

 The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing of Debt 
Securities) Regulations, 2008(Not Applicable to the Company during 
the Audit Period);‐ 

 The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Registrars to an Issue and 
Share Transfer Agents) Regulations, 1993 regarding the Companies Act 
and dealing with client; 

 The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Delisting of Equity Shares) 
Regulations, 2009 (Not Applicable to the Company during the Audit 
Period); and 

 The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Buyback of Securities) 
Regulations, 2018(Not Applicable to the Company during the Audit 
Period);‐ 

 
I have also examined compliance with the applicable clauses of the following: 

 Secretarial Standards issued by The Institute of Company Secretaries of India. 
 Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure 

Requirements) Regulations, 2015. 
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During the period under review the Company has complied with the provisions of the Act, 
Rules, Regulations, Guidelines, Standards, etc. mentioned above subject to the following 
prima facie observations: 

 The company is required to appoint Internal auditor during the year. 
 The trading of the company is suspended at BSE 
 Company is required to make SEBI (LODR) compliances good. 
 E- Voting facilities was required to be given to the members of the company. 
 Accounts were required to finalized prior to compliance period. 

I further report that 

The Board of Directors of the Company is duly constituted with proper balance of Executive 
Directors, Non-Executive Directors and Independent Directors (As per documents and 
information produced to us, except MD and CFO are same person holding two 
designations). 

The changes in the composition of the Board of Directors that took place during the period 
under review were carried out in compliance with the provisions of the Act. 

Adequate notice is given to all directors to schedule the Board Meetings, agenda and 
detailed notes on agenda were sent at least seven days in advance, and a system exists for 
seeking and obtaining further information and clarifications on the agenda items before the 
meeting and for meaningful participation at the meeting. 

Majority decision is carried through while the dissenting members’ views are captured and 
recorded as part of the minutes. 

I further report that there are adequate systems and processes in the company 
commensurate with the size and operations of the company to monitor and ensure 
compliance with applicable laws, rules, regulations and guidelines. 

 

Place: Ahmedabad  
Date: August 09, 2022  

Sd/- 

 Khusbhu Trivedi & Associates 
 FCS No. 9151 
 C.P No. 9115 
 UDIN: F009151D000768162 
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APPENDIX ‐ A 

 

To, 

The Members 

M/s. Frontline Financial Services Limited 

 

Our report of even date is to be read along with this letter. 

1. Maintenance of Secretarial records is the responsibility of the management of the 
Company. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these secretarial records 
based on our audit as presented by management to us. 

2. We have followed the audit practices and process as were appropriate to obtain 
reasonable assurance about the correctness of the contents of the Secretarial records. 
The verification was done on test basis to ensure that correct facts are reflected in 
Secretarial records. We believe that the process and practices, we followed provide a 
reasonable basis for our opinion. 

3. We have not verified the correctness and appropriateness of financial records and 
Books of Accounts of the Company. 

4. Wherever required, we have obtained the Management representation about the 
Compliance of laws, rules and regulations and happening of events etc. 

5. The Compliance of the provisions of Corporate and other applicable laws, rules, 
regulations, standards are the responsibility of the management. Our examination 
was limited to the verification of procedure on test basis. 

6. The Secretarial Audit report is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the 
Company nor of the efficacy or effectiveness with which the management has 
conducted the affairs of the Company. 

 

Place: Ahmedabad  
Date: August 09, 2022  

 
 

Sd/- 
 Khusbhu Trivedi & Associates 
 FCS No. 9151 
 C.P No. 9115 
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS REPORT 

 

The following discussion and analysis should be read in conjunction with Frontline 
Financial Services Limited's ('Company') audited standalone financial statements 
and related notes for the year ended March 31, 2022 included in this Annual Report. 

1. Industry & Business Overview 

The Company has been engaged in providing Trading of Construction Material 
during the Financial Year under review. The Company has been successful in 
booking a profit of Rs. 88,383. 

2. Risk and Concern 

Bullish trend in Equity Markets, Commodities and Real estate may affect volume 
and profitability of Government Securities business. Changes in rate of Interest may 
affect Company’s Profitability. 

3. Internal Control System and their adequacy 

The internal control system is looked after by Directors themselves, who also looked 
after the day to day affairs to ensure compliance of guide lines and policies, adhere 
to the management instructions and policies to ensure improvements in the system. 
The Internal Audit reports are regularly reviewed by the management. 

4. Environmental Issues 

As the company is not in the field of manufacture, the matter relating to produce any 
harmful gases and the liquid effluents are not applicable. 

5. Financial Performance with Respect to Operation Performance 

The Company has all the plans for tight budgetary control on key operational 
performance indication with judicious deployment of funds without resorting to any 
kind borrowing where ever possible. 
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6. Cautionary Statement 

Statement in this report on Management Discussion and Analysis may be forward 
looking statements within the meaning of applicable security laws or regulations. 
These statements are based on certain assumptions and expectations of future 
events. Actual results could however, differ materially, from those expressed or 
implied. Important factors that could make a difference to the company’s operations 
include global and domestic demand supply conditions, finished goods prices, raw 
material cost and availability and changes in government regulation and tax 
structure, economic development within India and the countries with which the 
company has business contacts and other factors such as litigation and industrial 
relations. 

The Company assumes no responsibility in respect of forward ‐ looking statements, 
which may be amended or modified in future on the basis of subsequent 
developments, information or events. 

 
 

For and on behalf of Board, 
Frontline Financial Services Limited 
 
 
 
 
Sd/- 
Viki Shah 
Director 
DIN: 07823247 

 
 
 
Sd/- 
Sandeep Mathur  
Managing Director 
DIN: 08173027 

Place: Ahmedabad 
Date: 10-08-2022 
 
Registered Office: 
Office No. 803, Eighth Floor Wallstreet II,  
Ellisbridge, Ahmedabad- 380006, Gujarat  
Mail: compliance@frontlinefsl.com 
Website: www.frontlinefsl.com 

 

  

 

 



 

 

 

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT 
 
TO THE MEMBERS OF FRONTLINE FINANCIAL SERVICES LIMITED 
 
I. Report on the Financial Statements  
 
1. Opinion 

 
 A. We have audited the accompanying Financial Statements of FRONTLINE 

FINANCIAL SERVICES LIMITED (“the Company”), which comprise the Balance 
Sheet as at March 31, 2022, the Statement of Profit and Loss the Statement of 
Cash Flows for the year ended on that date, and a summary of the significant 
accounting policies and other explanatory information.  
 

 B. In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the 
explanations given to us, the aforesaid Financial Statements give the 
information required by the Companies  Act, 2013  (“the  Act”) in  the  manner 
so  required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the  Indian  
Accounting  Standards prescribed under  section  133  of the Act read with the 
Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended, (“Ind AS”) 
and other accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state of 
affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2022, the profit and total 
comprehensive income, changes in equity and its cash flows for the year ended 
on that date 
 

2. Basis for Opinion 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3. 

We conducted our audit of the Financial Statements in accordance with the 
Standards on Auditing specified under section 143(10) of the Act (SAs). Our 
responsibilities under those Standards are further described in the Auditor’s 
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We 
are independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the 
Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (ICAI) together with the independence 
requirements that are relevant to our audit of the  financial  statements under the 
provisions of the Act and the Rules made thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other 
ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the ICAI’s Code of 
Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and 
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the Financial Statements. 
Emphasis of Matter  
We draw your attention to Note-22 to the Financial Results which explains the 
management’s assessment of the financial impact due to the lock-down and other 
restrictions and conditions related to the COVID – 19 pandemic situation, for which a 
definitive assessment of the impact in the subsequent period is highly dependent 



upon circumstances as they evolve. Our opinion is not modified in respect of this 
matter 
 
With reference to Note to accounts regarding the balance of Sundry Creditors, 
Debtors, Loans and Advances, Deposits Current Liabilities, Unsecured Loan etc being 
not confirmed by the parties and hence we express our inability to state whether 
these balances are recoverable/ payable to the extent stated. Therefore, we are 
also unable to comment with respect to provisioning, if any required, on the value 
of referred assets. 
 
With Reference to Note no 9 regarding Investment in Plot and Premises at Sanand, 
we have not received any documentation pertaining to the investment done in the 
company’s name, and hence we express our inability to state whether these 
investments can be liquidated / recoverable to the extent stated. Therefore, we are 
also unable to comment with respect to provisioning, if any required, on the value 
of said asset, which may in turn impact the company’s profit for year under 
consideration. 
 
 
With Reference to Note no 11 regarding Inventory, we have to state that we have 
not received any documentation pertaining to the valuation/ quantity of inventory 
available at site and also, we are unable to verify inventory at site (owing to 
travelling restriction due to pandemic / lockdown) and hence we express our 
inability to state whether the inventory can be liquidated / recoverable to the 
extent stated. Further, we are also unable to comment with respect to provisioning, 
if any required, on the value of said stock, which may in turn impact the company’s 
profit for year under consideration 
 

4. Key Audit Matters 
 Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most 

significance in our audit of the Financial Statements of the current period. These 
matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the Financial Statements as a 
whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion 
on these matters. We have determined the matters described below to be the key 
audit matters to be communicated in our report.  
 

The Key Audit matter How our audit addressed the key audit 
matter 

 
1.Existence and Valuation of Inventory: 
 
The Company has an inventory balance 
of Rs. 2,15,00,480/- as disclosed note 11 
of the accompanying financial 
statements, refer note 11 for the 
accounting policy adopted by the 
management with respect to inventory 

 
As part of our audit procedures:  
  
We have relied on management’s 
representation with respect to: 
 

1. The compliance of Accounting 
policy and applicable accounting 
standard for inventory.  



balance.  
 
We refer to Significant accounting 
policies on inventory and Note. 
No.VIII on inventory. Inventories are 
considered as Key Audit Matter due to 
nature of business, technical indicators 
governing inventory valuation, size of 
Balance sheet and because inventory 
valuation involves management 
judgment. According to accounting 
policy followed by the company, 
inventories are valued at lower of cost 
or market value. 
overheads.  

2. The inventory valuation process 
and practices. 

 
It is advisable for the company to 
maintain proper records for inventories 
to enable us to verify and carry out 
valuation of inventory for the purpose 
of Audit.  
 
We have to state that we have not 
received any documentation pertaining 
to the valuation/ quantity of inventory 
available at site , hence we express our 
inability to state whether the inventory 
can be liquidated / recoverable to the 
extent stated. 
 
Further, we are also unable to comment 
with respect to provisioning, if any 
required, on the value of said stock, 
which may in turn impact the company’s 
profit for year under consideration 
 

2. Previous Years Balances as at 
31.03.2019 including Current Assets, 
Loans and Advances, Current 
Liabilities, Unsecured Loans etc. 

1. We have relied on the Previous 
Year’s Auditor’s Report on the 
financial statements of the 
Company for the year ended 
March 31, 2019. 

2. No data is available with us to 
verify the opening balance 
pertaining to Loan and advance 
and we are unable to comment 
on the same. 

 

  
5. Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report Thereon 

 
 A. The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation of the 

other information. The other information comprises the information included in 
the Management Discussion and Analysis, Board’s Report including Annexures 
to Board’s Report, Business Responsibility Report, Corporate Governance and 
Shareholder’s Information, but does not include the Financial Statements and 
our auditor’s report thereon. Our opinion on the financial statements does not 
cover the other information  and we do not express any form of assurance 
conclusion thereon 
 

 B. In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility  is  to 
read the other  information and, in doing so, consider whether the other 



information is materially inconsistent  with  the   Financial Statements or our 
knowledge obtained during the course of our audit or otherwise appears to be 
materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude 
that there is a material misstatement of this other information we are required 
to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard. 
 

6. Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements 
 

 A. The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in  
section 134(5)  of the  Act with  respect  to the preparation of these  Financial 
Statements that  give  a  true  and  fair  view  of  the  financial  position, financial 
performance, total comprehensive income, changes in equity and cash flows  of 
the  Company  in  accordance with the Ind AS and other accounting principles 
generally  accepted  in  India.  This  responsibility  also  includes maintenance of 
adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the  Act for 
safeguarding  the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting 
frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate 
accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and 
prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal 
financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and 
completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and 
presentation of the   financial  statements that give a true and fair view and are 
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 
 

 B. In preparing the  Financial Statements, management is responsible for assessing 
the Company’s ability  to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable,  
matters related to going  concern and using  the  going  concern  basis of 
accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or to 
cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.  
 
The Board of Directors are responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial 
reporting process. 
 

7. Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements 
 

 A. Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the Financial 
Statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to 
fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. 
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an 
audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material 
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and 
are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could 
reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on 
the basis of these Financial Statements. 
 

 B. As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment 
and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also: 



 
  i) Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the  financial  

statements, whether due  to  fraud or error, design and perform audit 
procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is 
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not 
detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one 
resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional 
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control. 
 

  ii) Obtain an understanding of internal financial controls relevant to the audit in 
order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. 
Under section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also responsible for expressing our 
opinion on whether the Company has adequate internal financial controls with 
reference to financial statements in place and the operating effectiveness of 
such controls. 
 

  iii) Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the 
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures made by 
management. 
 

  iv) Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern 
basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a 
material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast 
significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we 
conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention 
in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the Financial Statements or, 
if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are 
based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. 
However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to 
continue as a going concern. 
 

  v) Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the Financial 
Statements, including the disclosures, and whether the Financial Statements 
represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair 
presentation. 
 

 C. Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the Financial Statements that, 
individually or in aggregate, makes it probable that the economic decisions of a 
reasonably knowledgeable user of the Financial Statements may be influenced. 
We consider quantitative materiality and qualitative factors in (i) planning the 
scope of our audit work and in evaluating the results of our work; and (ii) to 
evaluate the effect of any identified misstatements in the Financial Statements. 
 

 D. We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other 
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit 
findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we 
identify during our audit. 



 
 E. We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have 

complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to 
communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may 
reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, 
related safeguards. 
 

 F. From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we 
determine those matters that were of most significance in the audit of the 
Financial Statements of the current period and are therefore the key audit 
matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or 
regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely 
rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated 
in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably 
be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication 
 
 

 II. Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements 
 
1. As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, based on our audit we report that: 

 
 A. We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the 

best of our knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit 
 

 B. In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by 
the Company so far as it appears from our examination of those books. 
 

 C.  The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss including Other 
Comprehensive Income, Statement of Changes in Equity and the Statement of 
Cash Flow dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the relevant books of 
account. 
 

 D. In our opinion, the aforesaid    financial statements comply with the Ind AS 
specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies 
(Accounts) Rules, 2014. 
 

 E. On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on 
March 31, 2021 taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors 
is disqualified as on March 31, 2020 from being appointed as   a director in 
terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act. 
 

 F. With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to 
financial statements of the Company and the operating effectiveness of such 
controls, refer to our separate Report in  “Annexure  A”. Our report expresses 
an unmodified opinion on the adequacy and operating effectiveness of the 
Company’s internal financial controls with reference to financial statements. 
 



 G. With respect to the other matters to be included  in  the Auditor’s  Report  in  
accordance with  the requirements of section 197(16) of the Act, as amended: 
In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the 
explanations given to us, the remuneration paid by the Company to its directors 
during the year is in accordance with the provisions of section 197 of the Act. 
 

 H. With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in 
accordance with Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014,  as 
amended in  our  opinion  and to the  best of  our  information and according to 
the explanations given to us: 
 

    The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its financial 
position    in its  Financial Statements 
 

  The Company has made provision, as required under the applicable law or 
accounting standards, for material foreseeable losses, if any, on long-term 
contracts including derivative contracts 
 

  There has been no delay in transferring amounts, required to be transferred, to 
the Investor Education and Protection Fund by the Company. 
 
 
 

2.  As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2016 (“the Order”) 
issued by the Central Government in terms of Section 143(11) of the Act, we 
give in “Annexure B” a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 
4 of the Order. 

 

For J S SHAH & CO 
Chartered Accountants 
Firm Registration Number: 132059W 
 
Sd/- 
CA JAIMIN S SHAH 
Partner 
Membership Number:138488 
Date: 30.05.2022 
UDIN: 22138488AJWRFW9752 
 

 

 

 

 



 

 

 

 

 

Annexure-A 

 Independent Auditors' report on the financial statements of FRONTLINE FINANCIAL 
SERVICES LIMITED for the year ended 31st March 2022. 

Report on the internal financial controls with reference to the aforesaid financial statements 
under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 (Referred to in 
paragraph l(A)(t) under 'Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’ section of our 
report of even date) 

Opinion 

We have audited the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements of 
FRONTLINE FINANCIAL SERVICES LIMITED ("the Company") as of 31st March 2022 in 
conjunction with our audit of the financial statements of the Company for the year ended 
on that date. 

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, adequate internal financial 
controls with reference to  financial statements and such internal financial controls were 
operating effectively as at 31st  March 2022, based on the internal financial controls with 
reference to   financial  statements criteria established by the Company considering the 
essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of internal 
Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered  Accountants  
of India  (the "Guidance Note"). 

Management's Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls 

The Company's management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal 
financial controls based on the internal control with reference to financial statements 
criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of internal 
control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial 
Reporting (the "Guidance Note") issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India 
("ICAI"). These responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of 
adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly 
and efficient conduct of its business,  including adherence to the Company's  policies,  the 
safeguarding of  its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy 
and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial 
information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013 (hereinafter  referred to as "the 
Act"). 



Auditors' Responsibility 

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls with 
reference to financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance 
with the Guidance Note and the Standards on Auditing, prescribed under section 143(10) of 
the Act, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls with reference to 
financial statements. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with 
ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about 
whether adequate internal financial controls with reference to financial statements were 
established and maintained and whether such controls operated effectively in all material 
respects. 

 

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of 
the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements and their operating 
effectiveness. 

 

Our audit of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements included 
obtaining an understanding of such internal financial controls, assessing the risk that a 
material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness 
of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the 
auditor's judgement, including the assessment of the risks  of material  misstatement of the  
financial statements,  whether due to fraud or error. 

 

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to 
provide a basis for our audit opinion on the Company's internal financial controls with 
reference to financial statements. 

Meaning of Internal Financial controls with Reference to Financial Statements 

A company's internal financial controls with reference to financial statements is a process 
designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and 
the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally 
accepted accounting principles. A company's internal financial controls with reference to 
financial statements include those policies and procedures that (l) pertain to the 
maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the 
transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable 
assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial 
statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts 
and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorisations of 
management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding 
prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of the 
company's assets that could have a material effect on the  financial statements. 



Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial controls with Reference to   Financial Statements 

 

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls with reference to  financial 
statements, including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of 
controls, material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also,  
projections of any evaluation of  the internal financial controls with reference to  financial 
statements to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial controls with 
reference to  financial statements may become inadequate because of changes in 
conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or  procedures  may 
deteriorate. 

For J S SHAH & CO 
Chartered Accountants 
Firm Registration Number: 132059W 
 
Sd/- 
CA JAIMIN S SHAH 
Partner 
Membership Number:138488 
Date: 30.05.2022 
UDIN: 22138488AJWRFW9752 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

FRONTLINE FINANCIAL SERVICES LIMITED  

Annexure “B” to the Independent Auditor’s Report – 31st March, 2022 

(Referred to in our report of even date) 

With reference to the “Annexure B” referred to in the Independent Auditor’s Report to the 
members of the Company on financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2022, we 
report the following:  

 

i. (a)(A) The Company has not maintained proper records showing full particulars, 
including quantitative details and situation of Property, Plant and Equipment. 
 
(B) The Company has not maintained proper records of intangible assets.  

(b) All the Property, Plant and Equipment have not been physically verified by the 
management during the year and there is a not regular programme of 
verification which, in our opinion, is not reasonable having regard to the size of 
the company and the nature of its assets.  

(c ) All the title deeds of immovable properties are held in the name of the 
company subject to Note No 9 of Balance sheet of Rs. 1,00,00,000/- related to 
Investment in Plot in Sanand which is not verified by us as no information 
provided to us.   

(d) The Company has not revalued its property, plant and equipment (including 
right of use of assets) or intangible asset of both during the financial year; 

(e ) There is no any proceeding have been initiated or pending against company 
for holding any benami property under the Benami Transactions (Prohibition) 
Act, 1988 (45 of 1988) and rules made thereunder. 

 

ii. (a) The management has informed that they conducted physical verification of 
inventory at reasonable intervals during the year. In our opinion the coverage 
and the procedure of such verification by the management is not appropriate. 
discrepancies of 10% or more in aggregate for each class of inventory were 
noticed on such physical verification. 
 
(b) With Reference to Inventory, we have to state that we have not received any 
documentation pertaining to the valuation/ quantity of inventory available at site 
hence we express our inability to state whether the inventory can be liquidated / 
recoverable to the extent stated. No any provision for the same by management 
during the year. 
 
 



iii.  In our opinion and according to the information provided to us the company has 
not made investments and provided any guarantees and granted unsecured 
loans or advances in the nature of loans hence this clause is not applicable  
 

iv. The company has not provided any corporate guarantees within the meaning of 
section 185 & 186 of the Companies Act, 2013. 

 
v. In our opinion, and according to the information and explanations given to us, 

the Company has accepted deposit from public as against the directives issued by 
the Reserve Bank of India and the provisions of Sections 73 to 76 or any other 
relevant provisions of the Act and the rules framed thereunder.  
 

vi. The Central Government has not prescribed the maintenance of cost records 
under section 148(1) of the Act, for any of the services rendered by the 
Company. 
 

vii. (a) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of 
our examination of the records of the Company, amounts deducted / accrued in 
the books of account in respect of undisputed statutory dues including provident 
fund, income-tax, GST, value added tax, duty of customs, service tax, cess and 
other material statutory dues if applicable have been regularly deposited during 
the year by the Company with the appropriate authorities. As explained to us, 
the Company did not have any dues on account duty of excise. 
 

 (b) According to the information and explanations given to us, and the records of 
the companies examined by us, there are disputed dues of GST, income tax, 
custom duty, service tax, wealth tax, Value added tax, excise duty and cess which 
have been disclosed as under. 
 
 

Sr.No Particulars Assessment 
year 

Demand u/s  Demand 
Amount 

1 Income Tax 2009-20 147 87,14,360/- 
2 Income Tax 2010-11 154 10,54,530/- 
3 Income Tax 2010-11 271(1)( C) 5,87,100/- 
4 Income Tax 2009-10 271(1)( C) 27,19,200/- 
5 Professional 

Tax 
2020-21 - 19,000/- 

 
 
 

viii. The company has not recorded any transactions in the books of account which 
have been surrendered of disclosed as income during the year in the tax 
assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961. The previously unrecorded income 
has been properly recorded in the books of account during the year 
 

ix. (a) The Company has not defaulted in repayment of loans or other borrowings or 



in the payment of interest thereon to any lender; hence this clause is not 
applicable;  

 
(b) The company has not declared willful defaulter by any bank or financial 
institution or other lender, hence this clause is not applicable;  
 
(c) The company has not obtained any term loan during the year, Term loan were 
applied for the purpose for which the loan were obtained.  
 
(d) The company has not raised any short-term fund; hence this clause is not 
applicable;  
 
(e) The company has not taken any funds from any entity or person on account 
of or to meet the obligations of its subsidiaries, associates or joint ventures; 
hence this clause is not applicable;  
 
(f) The company has not raised company has raised loans during the year on the 
pledge of securities held in its subsidiaries, joint ventures or associate 
companies; hence this clause is not applicable. 

 
x. (a) The Company did not raise any money by way of initial public offer or further 

public offer (including debt instruments); hence this clause is not applicable;  
 
(b) The Company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement 
of shares or convertible debentures (fully, partially or optionally convertible) 
during the year; hence this clause is not applicable.  
 

xi. (a) According to the information and explanations given to us, no material fraud 
by the Company or on the Company by its officers or employees has been 
noticed or reported during the course of our audit. 
  
(b) No report under sub-section (12) of section 143 of the Companies Act has 
been filed by the auditors in Form ADT-4 as prescribed under rule 13 of 
Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 with the Central Government; hence 
this clause is not applicable. 
 

xii. (a) The Company is not a Nidhi Company hence compliance of Net Owned Funds 
to Deposits in the ratio of 1: 20 to meet out the liability is not applicable to the 
company;  
 
(b) The Company is not a Nidhi Company hence maintaining ten percent 
unencumbered term deposits as specified in the Nidhi Rules, 2014 to meet out 
the liability is not applicable to the company; 
 
(c) The Company is not a Nidhi Company hence this clause is not applicable to 
the company. 
 



xiii. According to the information and explanation given to us and based on the our 
examination of the records of the company, all transactions with the related 
parties are in compliance with sections 177 and 188 of Companies Act where 
applicable and the details have been disclosed in the financial statements, etc., 
as required by the applicable accounting standards. 
 

xiv. a) The Central Government has not prescribed to appoint internal auditor under 
section 138 of the Act, for any of the services rendered by the Company;  

 
(b) This clause is not applicable to the company.  

 
 

xv. According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our 
examination of the records of the Company, the Company has not entered into 
non-cash transactions with directors or persons connected with him as restricted 
in section 192 of Companies Act, 2013; hence this clause is not applicable.  
 

xvi. (a) The Company is not required to be registered under section 45-IA of the 
Reserve Bank of India Act 1934.  

 
(b) The Company is not has conducted any Non-Banking Financial or Housing 
Finance activities; hence this clause is not applicable.  
 
(c) The Company is not a Core Investment Company (CIC) as defined in the 
regulations made by the Reserve Bank of India; hence this clause is not 
applicable.  
 
(d) The Company does not have any CIC. 

 
xvii. The company has not incurred cash losses in the financial year and in the 

immediately. 
  

xviii. There is no resignation of statutory auditors during the year; hence this clause is 
not applicable.  

 
xix. According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our 

examination of the records of the Company and financial ratios, ageing and 
expected dates of realisation of financial assets and payment of financial 
liabilities, other information accompanying the financial statements, the 
auditor’s knowledge of the Board of Directors and management plans, we were 
in the opinion that no material uncertainty exists as on the date of the audit 
report. There was no any liability in the books of the company for those payable 
within one year from the date of balance sheet date.  

 
xx. (a) The company has not any other than ongoing projects, therefore provision of 

section 135 of Companies Act, 2013 is not applicable to the company;  
 



(b) This clause is not applicable to the company.  
 

xxi. There are qualifications or adverse remarks given by the respective auditors in 
the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order (CARO) reports, and same has been 
mention audit report.  
 

 For J. S. Shah & Co. 
 Chartered Accountants 
 Firm’s Registration No: 132059W 
  
 Sd/- 
 
Ahmedabad 

Jaimin Shah 
Partner 

Date: 30.05.2022 Membership No: 138488 
UDIN: 22138488AJWRFW9752 
 

 

 



(Amount in Rs)
 Note No. As at

 31st March, 2022
As at

 31st March, 2021
I. EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

1 Shareholders’ funds
(a) Share capital 1 5,90,11,000 5,90,11,000
(b) Reserves and surplus 2 48,05,184 47,16,801
(c) Money received against share warrants 0 0

2 Non-current liabilities
(a) Long-term borrowings 3 0 57,34,144
(b) Deferred tax liabilities (Net) 2,924 2,924
(C ) Trade payables 4 2,87,24,338 3,15,41,499

3 Current liabilities
(a) Short-term borrowings 0 0
(b) Trade payables 5
(i) total outstanding dues of micro enterprises

and small enterprises; and

(ii) total outstanding dues of creditors other than

micro enterprises and small enterprises 7,31,000 55,000
(c) Other current liabilities 6 17,61,200 19,50,690
(d) Short-term provisions 7 22,852 60,792

TOTAL 9,50,58,498 10,30,72,850

II. ASSETS

1 Non-current assets
(a) Property, plant and equipment and Intangible assets 8

(i)  Propert, plant and equipment 13,630 19,062
(ii)  Intangible assets 0 0

(b) Non-current investments 9 1,00,00,000 1,00,00,000
(c) Deferred tax assets (net) 0
(d) Long-term loans and advances 10 5,49,26,493 6,09,24,162
(e) Other non-current assets 0 0

2 Current assets
(a) Current Investments  0 0
(b) Inventories 11 2,15,00,480 2,15,00,480
(c) Trade receivables 12 52,98,148 46,08,419
(d) Cash and cash equivalents 13 32,33,236 59,59,401
(e) Short-term loans and advances 0 0
(f) Other current assets 14 86,511 61,326

TOTAL 9,50,58,498 10,30,72,850

FOR J S SHAH & Co For and on behalf of
Chartered Accountants
(F.R.NO. 132059W)

Sd/- Sd/- Sd/-
Jaimin S. Shah                                                Viki Shah Sandeep Mathur
Partner                                                                                            Director Director
Mem. No. : 138488 DIN: 07823247 DIN: 08173027
Place : Ahmedabad                                   Date: 30.05.2022
Date :  30.05.2022 Place: Ahmedabad
UDIN: 22138488AJWRFW9752
                                                                 

Frontline Financial Services Limited

FRONTLINE FINANCIAL SERVICES LIMITED

Balance Sheet as at 31st March 2022

Particulars

See accompanying notes to the financial statements
As per our Audit Report of even date attached herewith

CIN: L65910GJ1991PLC016289



(Amount in Rs)

Refer 
Note No.

31st March,2022 31st March,2021

I. Revenue from operations 15 11,30,418                -                            
II. Other income 16 11,32,706                68,489                      

III. Total Income (I + II) 22,63,124                68,489                      

IV. Expenses:
Purchases of Stock-in-Trade 10,44,338                -                            
Changes in inventories of finished goods work-in-
progress and Stock-in-Trade 17 -                            -                            
Employee benefits expense 18 3,16,350                  -                            
Finance costs 19 -                            -                            
Depreciation and amortization expense 5,432                        7,743                        
Other expenses 20 7,93,131                  25,118                      

Total expenses 21,59,251                32,861                      

V.
Profit before exceptional and extraordinary items and 
tax (III-IV) 1,03,873                  35,628                      

VI. Exceptional items
Net Gain/ Loss On sale of Fixed Asset -                            -                            

VII. Profit before extraordinary items and tax (V - VI) 1,03,873                  35,628                      

VIII. Extraordinary Items -                            -                            

IX. Profit before tax (VII- VIII) 1,03,873                  35,628                      

X Tax expense: 21 15,490                      10,688                      
(1) Current tax 22,852                      10,688                      
(2) Deferred tax -                            -                            
(3) Excess / Short Provision Written Off (7,362)                       -                            

XI
Profit (Loss) for the period from continuing operations 
(IX-X) 88,383                      24,940                      

XII Profit/(loss) from discontinuing operations -                            -                            

XIII Tax expense of discontinuing operations -                            -                            

FRONTLINE FINANCIAL SERVICES LIMITED

Statement of Profit and loss for the year ended 31st March 2022

Particulars

CIN: L65910GJ1991PLC016289



XIV
Profit/(loss) from Discontinuing operations (after tax) 
(XII-XIII) -                            -                            

XV Profit (Loss) for the period (XI + XIV) 88,383                      24,940                      
XVI Earnings per equity share:

(1) Basic 1(a) 0.015 0.004
(2) Diluted 1(a) 0.015 0.004

See accompanying notes to the financial statements 22
As per our Audit Report of even date attached herewith

FOR J S SHAH & Co For and on behalf of
Chartered Accountants
(F.R.NO. 132059W)

Sd/- Sd/- Sd/-
Jaimin S. Shah                                                Viki Shah Sandeep Mathur
Partner                                                            Director Director
Mem. No. : 138488 DIN: 07823247 DIN: 08173027
Place : Ahmedabad                                   Date: 30.05.2022
Date : 30.05.2022 Place: Ahmedabad
UDIN: 22138488AJWRFW9752

Frontline Financial Services Limited



Particulars
For the year ended 

31st March 2022
For the year ended 

31st March 2021

A Cashflow from Oprating Actvities

Net Profit before Tax as per Profit & Loss Account 1,03,873                          35,628                            

Adjustment For:

Depreication Expense 5,432                                7,743                               
Priliminaary expenses w/off -                                    -                                   
Deferred  Tax -                                    -                                   
Interest Expense -                                    -                                   

5,432                                7,743                               

Operating Profit before changes in working Capital 1,09,305                          43,371                            

Adjustment for:
   

Trade Receivables (6,89,729)                        -                                   
Loans & Advances 59,97,669                       4,04,211                         
Inventories -                                    -                                   
Other Current Assets (25,185)                            (13,489)                           
Trade Payable (21,41,161)                      (24,04,211)                     
Other Current Liabilies (1,89,490)                        -                                   
Current liabilities & Provisions (37,940)                            35,697                            

29,14,164                       (19,77,792)                     

Cash generated from Operations 30,23,469                       (19,34,421)                     

Taxes Paid 15,490                             10,688                            
Priliminary expense incurred -                                    -                                   
Cash flow from operating activities 30,07,979                       (19,45,109)                     

B Cash Flow from Investing Acttivties

Purchase of Fixed Assets -                                    -                                   

Cash flow from investing activities -                                    -                                   

FRONTLINE FINANCIAL SERVICES LIMITED

Cash Flow Statement for the year ended 31st March 2022
CIN: L65910GJ1991PLC016289



C Cashflow from Financing Activities

Proceeds from issue of share capital -                                    -                                   
Proceeds from long term borrowings (57,34,144)                      19,50,000                       
Interest Expense -                                    -                                   
Short Term Borrowings from Bank -                                    -                                   
Proceeds from share premium -                                    -                                   
Cash flow from financing activities (57,34,144)                      19,50,000                      

Net Increase in Cash & Cash Equivalent (27,26,165)                      4,891                              

Opening balance of Cash & Cash Equivalent 59,59,401                       59,54,510                       
Closing balance of Cash & Cash Equivalent 32,33,236                       59,59,401                      

See accompanying notes to the financial statements
As per our Audit Report of even date attached herewith

FOR J S SHAH & Co For and on behalf of
Chartered Accountants Frontline Financial Services Limited
(F.R.NO. 132059W)

Sd/- Sd/- Sd/-
Jaimin S. Shah                                                Viki Shah Sandeep Mathur
Partner                                                            Director Director
Mem. No. : 138488 DIN: 07823247 DIN: 08173027
Place : Ahmedabad                                   Date: 10.08.2022
Date : 10.08.2022 Place: Ahmedabad
UDIN: 22138488AJWRFW9752



Note 1
Share capital 

Number Amount Number Amount

60,00,000          6,00,00,000       60,00,000          6,00,00,000         
(During the previous year the authorised share 
capital of the company has increased to 

59,01,100          5,90,11,000       59,01,100          5,90,11,000         

-                      -                      -                      -                        

59,01,100          5,90,11,000       59,01,100          5,90,11,000         

Shares in the company held by each shareholder holding more than 5 percent shares

No. of Shares 
held

% of Holding No. of Shares 
held

% of Holding 

2,96,900            5.03% 2,96,900            5.03%

Darshan Mehta 3,99,800            6.78% 3,99,800            6.78%

3,09,400            5.24% 3,09,400            5.24%

10,06,100          17.05% 10,06,100          17.05%

**Notes :

Fully Paid Equty Shares

Suresh Gadhecha

Rashikbhai Sheth

Total

Fully Paid equity shares, which have a par value Rs 10, carry one vote per share and carry a right to dividends

FRONTLINE FINANCIAL SERVICES LIMITED
CIN: L65910GJ1991PLC016289

Notes on Financial Statements For The Year Ended 31st March, 2022

Share Capital
2021-2022 2020-2021

Authorised

Equity Shares of Rs. 10/- each

Name of Shareholder 2021-2022

Subscribed & Paid up

2020-2021

Equity Shares of Rs. 10/- each fully paid

Subscribed but not fully Paid up

Total

The Company has only one class of equity shares. Each holder of equity shares is entitled to one vote per share.

There is no fresh issue or buyback of shares during the year.



Note 2

2021-22 2020-21
.

47,16,801                          46,91,861                      
-                                      -                                  
-                                      -                                  

47,16,801                          46,91,861                      

47,16,801                          46,91,861                      
88,383                                24,940                            

Closing Balance 48,05,184                          47,16,801                      

48,05,184                          47,16,801                      

Note 3
Long Term Borrowings

2021-22 2020-21

-                                      57,34,144                      

-                                      57,34,144                      

Note 4
Trade Payables

2021-22 2020-21

More than one year 2,87,24,338                       3,15,41,499                   
(A) total outstanding dues of micro enterprises

and small enterprises; and

(B) total outstanding dues of creditors other than

micro enterprises and small enterprises

2,87,24,338                       3,15,41,499                   

FRONTLINE FINANCIAL SERVICES LIMITED
CIN: L65910GJ1991PLC016289

Opening Balance
A.  General Reserve 

Trade Payble

Particulars
Reserves and surplus

Total

Particulars

(+) Current Year Transfer
(-) Written Back in Current Year
Closing Balance
B. Surplus
Opening balance
(+) Net Profit/(Net Loss) For the current year

Total

Particulars

Total

Unsecured 
Loan from Parties



FRONTLINE FINANCIAL SERVICES LIMITED
CIN: L65910GJ1991PLC016289

Note 5
Trade Payables

2021-22 2020-21

(A) total outstanding dues of micro enterprises

and small enterprises; and

(B) total outstanding dues of creditors other than

micro enterprises and small enterprises 7,31,000                            55,000                            

7,31,000                            55,000                            

Note 6
Other Current Liabilities

2021-22 2020-21

(a) Statutory Liabilities 56,200                                19,000                            
17,05,000                          19,31,690                      
17,61,200                          19,50,690                      

Note 7
Short Term Provisions

2021-22 2020-21
Provision For Taxation 22,852                                20,792                            
Provision For Audit Fees -                                      40,000                            

22,852                                60,792                            

Trade Payble Less than One Year

Total

Other Payables
Particulars

Particulars

(b) Advance from Customers (Incl. Deposits)
Total

Particulars

Total

Note 5.1 : Steps have  been taken to identify the suppliers who qualify under the definition of micro and 
small enterprises, as defined under the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act 2006. Since 
no intimation has been received from the suppliers regarding their status under the said Act as at 31st March 
2022, disclosures relating to amounts unpaid as at the year end, if any, have not been furnished. In the 
opinion of the management, the impact of interest, if any,that may be payable in accordance with the 
provisions of the Act, is not expected to be material.



FRONTLINE FINANCIAL SERVICES LIMITED
CIN: L65910GJ1991PLC016289

Note 9

Non-current investments

2021-22 2020-21

(a) Investment Properties 0

Plot at Sanand                            52,20,000                        52,20,000 

Premises                            47,80,000                        47,80,000 

Total                         1,00,00,000                     1,00,00,000 

Note 10

Long Term Loan and advance

2021-22 2020-21

Unsecured,
5,49,26,493                       6,09,24,162                   

5,49,26,493                       6,09,24,162                   

Particulars

Particulars

 

Total

Loans and  Advances to be recovered in cash or kind



FRONTLINE FINANCIAL SERVICES LIMITED
CIN: L65910GJ1991PLC016289

Note 11
Inventories 

2021-22 2020-21
Stock-in-trade
Valued At Cost 2,15,00,480                       2,15,00,480                   

Total 2,15,00,480                       2,15,00,480                   
* Stock certified and given by management

Note 12
Trade Receivables

2021-22 2020-21
Unsecured, considered good

Outstanding for more than six months

a) Secured, considered good 5298148 4608419
b) Unsecured, considered good

c) Doubtful

Others

a) Secured, considered good

b) Unsecured, considered good

c) Doubtful -                                      -                                  
Others -                                      -                                  

52,98,148                          46,08,419                      

Note 13
Cash and cash equivalents

2021-22 2020-21
a. Balances with banks 2698623 3536779
b. Cheques, drafts on hand -                                      -                                  
c. Cash on hand 5,34,613                            24,22,622                      

32,33,236                          59,59,401                      

Note 14
Other current assets

2021-22 2020-21
TDS Receivable
GST Receivable 86,511                                61,326                            

Total 86,511                                61,326                            

Particulars

Particulars

Particulars

Particulars

Total

Total



Note 15
Revenue from operations  

2021-22 2020-21
11,30,418                -                           

11,30,418                -                           

Note 16
 Other Income  

2021-22 2020-21
11,32,706                68489

-                            0
11,32,706                68489

Note 17
Changes in inventories of finished goods, work-in-progress and Stock-in-Trade

2021-22 2020-21

2,15,00,480            2,15,00,480           

2,15,00,480            2,15,00,480           

-                            -                           

FRONTLINE FINANCIAL SERVICES LIMITED
CIN: L65910GJ1991PLC016289

Particulars
Liabilities no Longer Payable

Particulars
Sale of products

Total

Prior Period Income 
Total

Traded Items
( Inventorise Certified by Director )

Finished Goods

Particulars
Inventories At Commencement
Work-in-Process 
Finished Goods
Traded Items

Inventories At Close
Work-in-Process

Total



FRONTLINE FINANCIAL SERVICES LIMITED
CIN: L65910GJ1991PLC016289

Note 18
Employee Benefits Expense

2021-22 2020-21
3,16,350                  -                           

-                            -                           
3,16,350                  -                           

Note 19
Finance costs

2021-22 2020-21
-                            -                           
-                            -                           

-                            -                           

Note 20
Other expenses

2021-22 2020-21
50,000                      25,000                    

Repairs and Maintenance 7,983                        -                           
Misc Expenses 4,177                        118                          
Legal and Professional Fees 6,47,270                  -                           

25,950                      -                           
33,100                      -                           

Electricity Expenses 4,419                        
5,232                        -                           

15,000                      -                           
7,93,131                  25,118                    

Note 21
Tax Expense

2021-22 2020-21
22,852                      37,500                    

-                            1,459                      
22,852                     38,959                    

(a) Salaries and incentives
Particulars

Total

Total

Total

Particulars
Audit Fees

Deferred Tax

Particulars
Income Tax 

Kasar Vatav
ROC Expenses

Telephone Expenses
Late Filling Fees

Total

Particulars
Interest expense
Other borrowing costs

(b) Staff welfare expenses



Note 8
Property, plant and equipment and Intangible assets

Balance as at 1 
April 2021

Additions/ 
(Disposals)

Acquired 
through 
business  

combinatio
ns

Revaluatio
ns/ 

(Impairme
nts)

Balance as 
at 31 March 

2022

Balance as at 1 
April 2021

Dep.charge 
for the year

Adjustment 
due to 

revaluations

On 
disposals

Balance as at 31 
March 2022

Balance as at 
31 March 2022

Balance as at 
31 March 2021

a Tangible Assets

Furniture and Fixtures 5,850                 5,850           2,127                    637                -            2,764                   3,086               3,723                
 

Office Equipment 44,706               44,706         29,367                  4,795            34,162                 10,544             15,339              
-               

Total 50,556               -                   -             -             50,556         31,494                  5,432            -                 -            36,926                 13,630             19,062              
Previous Year 50,556               -                   -             -             50,556         23,751                  7,743            -                 -            31,494                 19,062             -                    

FRONTLINE FINANCIAL SERVICES LIMITED
CIN: L65910GJ1991PLC016289

Accumulated Depreciation Net BlockFixed Assets Gross Block



  
FFRROONNTTLLIINNEE  FFIINNAANNCCIIAALL  SSEERRVVIICCEESS  LLIIMMIITTEEDD  
  
NOTE [ 22 ] : SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES :-                                
The Significant accounting policies to the extent applicable the companies are as under: 
 

 
((ii))  HHiissttoorriiccaall  CCoosstt  BBaassiiss  ::--  
 

The financial statements are prepared under the historical cost convention on accrual basis 
and ongoing concern basis and in accordance with the generally accepted accounting 
principles. According standards issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India, as 
applicable and relevant presentation requirements of the Companies Act, 2013. 
  

((iiii))  UUssee  ooff  EEssttiimmaatteess  ::--  
 
The preparation of financial statements requires the management of the company to make 
estimates and assumptions that affect the balances of assets and liabilities and disclosures 
relating to the contingent liability as at the date of the financial statements and reported 
amounts of income and expenses like provision for doubtful debts, allowances for slow or non 
moving inventories, useful lives of fixed assets, provision for taxation and provision of 
employee benefits, etc., during the period.  Management believes the estimates used in the 
preparation of the financial statements are prudent and reasonable. Future results may vary 
from these estimates. 
 

((iiiiii))  RReevveennuuee  RReeccooggnniittiioonn    ::--  
Revenue is recognized to the extent that it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to 
the enterprise and as and when all the following points are satisfied: - 
 

 Sale is recognized, net of return and trade discounts, on transfer of significant risks 
and rewards of ownership to the buyer, which generally coincides with the delivery 
of goods to customers. Sales exclude GST.   

  Revenue from contracts prices on time and material basis are recognized when 
services are rendered and related costs are incurred. Foreseeable losses on such 
contracts are recognized when probable.  

 
Revenue from Sales of Goods is recognized as per Accounting Standard-9 : Revenue 
Recognition 

 
    



  
((iivv))  RReettiirreemmeenntt  aanndd  ootthheerr  EEmmppllooyyeeeess  BBeenneeffiittss  ::  

No Provision for retirement benefits for employees has been made since the Gratuity Act. 
Provident Fund Act not applicable to the company. And the company has adopted PAY-AS-
YOU- GO method for the Payment of other retirement benefits if any payable to the employees.  

((vv))  PPrroovviissiioonnss  aanndd  CCoonnttiinnggeenntt  lliiaabbiilliittiieess  ::--  

1) Provisions are recognized for liabilities that can be measured only by using a substantial 
degree of estimation, if- 

a)The Company has a present obligation as a result of a past event. 
b)Probable outflow of resources is expected to settle the obligation and 
c) The amount of obligation can be reliably estimated 
 

2) Contingent liability is stated in the case of: 
 
a) A present obligation arising from a past event, when it is not probable that an outflow 
of resources will be required to settle the obligation. 
b) A possible obligation, unless the probability of outflow of resources is remote. 
 

3) Contingent Assets are not recognized in the financial statements since this may result in the 
recognition of income that may never be realized. 
 

4) Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets are reviewed at each Balance Sheet 
date in accordance with the Accounting Standard AS-29 on “Provisions, Contingent 
Liabilities and Contingent Assets” issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. 

 
 
((vvii))  PPrrooppeerrttyy,,  PPllaanntt  aanndd  eeqquuiippmmeenntt  ::--  

  
1) Items of property, plant and equipment are measured at cost, which includes capitalized 

borrowing costs, less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses, if any.  
 

2) Cost of an item of property, plant and equipment comprises its purchase price, including 
non-refundable purchase taxes, after deducting trade discounts and rebates, any directly 
attributable cost of bringing the item to its working condition for its intended use.  

 
3) If significant parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have different useful lives, 

then they are accounted for as separate items (major components) of property, plant and 
equipment. 

 
4) Any gain or loss on disposal of an item of property, plant and equipment is recognized in 

Statement of Profit and Loss. 
    



  

Depreciation:  

Depreciation is being provided on a pro-rata basis on the ‘Written down Value Method’ over 
the estimated useful lives of the assets as prescribed under Part C of Schedule II to the 
Companies Act, 2013. The residual values, useful lives and methods of depreciation of property, 
plant and equipment are reviewed at each financial year end and adjusted prospectively, if 
appropriate. Advances given towards acquisition of property, plant and equipment outstanding 
at each Balance Sheet date are disclosed as other current assets. 

  
((vviiii))  IInnvveessttmmeenntt  PPrrooppeerrttyy  

Investment property is property held either to earn rental income or for capital appreciation or 
for both, but not for sale in the ordinary course of business, use in the production or supply of 
goods or services or for administrative purposes.  

Recognition and measurement 

Upon initial recognition, an investment property is measured at cost only and no depreciation 
charge over it. At the time sale of that property it treated as Capital assets and Capital gain 
income recognition. 

  
((vviiiiii))    IInnvveennttoorriieess  

  

Inventories are valued at the lower of cost (on weighted average basis) and the net realisable 
value after providing for obsolescence and other losses, where considered necessary value after 
providing for obsolescence and other losses, where considered necessary. Cost includes all 
charges in bringing the goods to the point of sale, including other levies and receiving charges.  

. 

((iixx))  AAccccoouunnttiinngg  ffoorr  TTaaxxeess  ooff  IInnccoommee  ::--  
  

A) Current Tax  

Provision for current income tax is made in accordance with provision of Income Tax Act 
1961.   

B) Deferred tax 

Provision for deferred tax is calculated at the current rate of Income Tax rates enacted or 
substantially enacted as at the balance sheet date  and is recognized on timing difference, 
being the difference between taxable income and accounting income that origin in one 
period and are capable of reversal in one or more subsequent period.   

Deferred tax asset, subject to the consideration of prudence is recognized and carried 
forward only to the extent that there is reasonable certainty that sufficient future income 
will be available against which such deferred tax asset can be set off. 

 
  



 
((xx))  AAsssseettss  aanndd  LLiiaabbiilliitteess::    

  
The balances under sundry debtors, sundry creditors, deposits, loans and advances payable/ 
receivable are mainly confirmed with parties. However certain balances are subject to 
confirmation. 
  
In the opinion of Board of Directors and to the best of their knowledge and belief, the value 
on realization of Current Assets, Loans and advances in the ordinary course of business will 
not be less than the amount at which they are stated in the Balance Sheet. 
 
Adequate provision has been made for all known liabilities and that the provisions are not 
in excess of the amount reasonably necessary. 
 

((xxii))  IImmppaaiirrmmeenntt  ooff  AAsssseettss::    
 
Assessment is done at each balance sheet date as to whether there is any indication that an 
asset (Tangible and Intangible) may be impaired for the purpose of assessing impairment 
the smallest identifiable group of assets that generates cash inflows from continuing use that 
are largely independent of the cash inflows from other assets or group of assets is 
considered as a cash generating units if any such indication exists and estimation of the 
recoverable amount of the assets/cash generating unit is made. Assets whose carrying 
amount exceeds their recoverable amount are written down to recoverable amount. 
Recoverable amount is higher of an asset or Cash generating unit's net selling price and its 
value in use in the present value of estimated future cash flows expected to arise from 
continuing use of an asset and from its disposal at the end of its useful life. Assessment is 
also done at each balance sheet as to whether there is any indication that an impairment loss 
recognized for an asset in prior accounting periods may no longer exist or may have 
decreased. An impairment loss is reversed to the extent that the asset's carrying amount 
does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined if no impairment 
loss had previously been recognized. 
 
 

((xxiiii))  BBoorrrroowwiinngg  CCoosstt::  
 
As required by Accounting Standard 16 'Borrowing Costs', the Company needs to 
Capitalized the Interest Cost of the funds raised through related parties and financial 
institutions. No information is available about loan for which purpose it has been taken. 
Hence, whole interest cost is transferred to Profit & Loss A/c. 
 

((xxiiiiii))  PPrroovviissiioonnss,,  CCoonnttiinnggeenntt  LLiiaabbiilliittiieess  aanndd  CCoonnttiinnggeenntt  AAsssseettss::  
  

Provisions: Provisions are recognised when there is a present obligation as a result of a past 
event, it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required 
to settle the obligation and there is a reliable estimate of the amount of the obligation. Provisions 



are measured at the best estimate of the expenditure required to settle the present obligation at 
the Balance sheet date and are not discounted to its present value. 

 
Contingent Liabilities: Contingent liabilities are disclosed when there is a possible obligation 
arising from past events, the existence of which will be confirmed only by the occurrence or non 
occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the company 
or a present obligation that arises from past events where it is either not probable that an 
outflow of resources will be required to settle or a reliable estimate of the amount cannot be 
made. 

 
 
((xxiivv))  EEaarrnniinngg  PPeerr  SShhaarree  

  

Description Current Year 

(2021-22) 

Previous Year 

(2020-21) 

Profit after tax (Rs.) 88383 24940 

Profit attributable to ordinary Shareholders 
(Rs.) 

88383 24940 

Weighted Avg. No. of Equity Shares 5901100 5901100 

Basic Earning per share  0.015 0.004 

Nominal Value Per Equity Share (Rs.) 10 10 

  
((xxvv))  DDiisscclloossuurree  oonn  CCoovviidd  1199  

  
Due to outbreak of COVID-19 globally and in india, the company’s management has 
made initial assessment of likely adverse impact on business and financial risks, and 
believes that the impact is likely to be short term in nature. The management does not 
see any medium to long term risks in the company's ability to continue as a going 
concern and meeting its liabilities as and when they fall due.  
 
The Company has performed analysis on the assumptions used and based on current 
indicators of future economic conditions, the Company expects to recover the carrying 
amount of these assets. The impact of the global health pandemic may be different from 
that estimated as at the date of approval of these financial statements and the Company 
will continue to closely monitor any material changes to future economic conditions 
 
The management has exercised due care, in concluding on significant accounting 
judgements and estimates, inter-alia, recoverability of receivables, assessment for 
impairment of investments, intangible assets, inventory, based on the information 



available to date, both internal and external, while preparing the Company’s financial 
results as of and for the year ended 31st March 2022 

 
OTHER NOTES ON ACCOUNT :-  
 

25. The Company is a Small and Medium Sized Company (SMC) as defined in the General 
Instructions in respect of Accounting Standards notified under the Companies Act, 2013. 
Accordingly, the Company has complied with the Accounting Standards as applicable to 
a Small and Medium Sized Company. 

 
26. Paisa is rounded up to the nearest rupee.  

 

27. Previous year's figures have been regrouped, reclassified, restated or re-casted wherever 
necessary to make them comparable with current year’s figure or for proper presentation.  

 

28. In the opinion of the management, the current assets, loans and advances are approximately 
of the value stated in the Balance Sheet if realized in the ordinary course of business. 

 
29. We have not received Balance of Sundry creditors, debtors, loans and advances, Other 

Current liabilities hence said balance are subject to confirmation. 
 

30. We have not verified State bank of India Opening Balance of Rs.41286/- as same has been in 
operative as inform by Company. Statement not available with company hence we can not 
comment on same.  

 

31. The audit has been carried out on the basis of the fresh computerized output reconciled. 
 

32. We are unable to categories the dues to small scale Industries (SSI) separately due to lack of 
information regard to the status of the creditors for goods outstanding as on the balance 
sheet date. 

 

33. We have relied on previous years auditors report for opening balances as at 01.04.2019. 
  

34. RReellaatteedd  PPaarrttyy  DDiisscclloossuurreess  uunnddeerr  ::--  ((AASS--1188)) 
 
A. Related Party: 

 
a. Key Management of Company: 

VIKI Shah 
Sandeep Mathur 

  



 
 
 

b. Related Party of Director or Key Management Person   
Deep Enterprise ( Prop of Dipti Mathur ) 

 
  

B. The following transactions were carried out with related parties in the 
ordinary course of business: 

 
 

Related Party Transaction Key 
Management 

Transaction During the Period 
 
A. Director Salary 

 
 
Rs- 0/- 
 

Loan Received during the year Rs. 0/- 
Loan Repaid during the year  Rs- 19,50,000/- 

 
 
 

35. Note 1 & 33 forms the integral part of the Balance sheet as at 31st March 2022 and Profit & 
Loss Account for the year ended on that date. 

--------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- 

J S SHAH & Co. For and on behalf of 
Chartered Accountants Frontline Financial Services Limited. 

(FRN: 132059W)    

 

 
Sd/- 

Viki Shah 
Director 

DIN : 07823247 
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Sd/- 
Jaimin Shah                                   
Partner                                                        

Sandeep Mathur 
Director 

DIN : 08173027 
 

M.NO.  138488    
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